
On 05/30/2017 at approximately 1251 hours I, Officer Young (riding with Officer 
Teske), was dispatched to a theft past call that occurred at T-Mobile, located at 
27880 IH 45 North.  I arrived on scene and made contact with the assistant 
manager, identified as Chris Mayorga (W/M; DOB x), and a sales representative 
identified as Todd Wilson (W/M; x).  They advised that two males entered the 
store and stole property without consent, committing the offense of theft at 
approximately 1248 hours. They advised that the two males (unknown age) had 
circled the store a few times in a dark green older model Chevrolet Malibu (1999 - 
2000 model), and then entered the store.  One of the males asked Wilson several 
questions and the other male was standing near the Iphone display on the 
northeast corner of the sales floor.  Wilson moved to the south end of the store 
to help another customer.  It was at this time the males cut the cables to the 
Iphones at the northeast corner of the store and ran out the door located at the 
north side of the store.  The phones were secured to the display case by a security 
cable and an alarm sounded when the cables were cut.  One of the males was 
described as a black male approximately six feet tall with short hair, he had a 
muscular build and was wearing a white shirt with a Mardi Gras logo.  The second 
was described as a black male approximately six feet tall with short deadlocks and 
medium build.  After they ran out of the store, Wilson followed and saw them 
leaving northbound on the Feeder Road in the dark green Chevrolet Malibu.  
Mayorga advised the phones stolen were a jet black Apple Iphone 7, 128 GB, 
valued at $750.00, and a black Phone 7Plus 32GB, valued at $770.00.  The total 
amount stolen was $1,520.00.  Mayorga was unable to provide serial numbers for 
the phones at this time and advised that he would attempt to locate them and 
contact the ORNPD.  I asked Mayorga if he would be able to provide video 
surveillance of the suspects and he stated that he would contact the loss 
prevention manager and have them provide a copy of the video.  Mayorga and 
Wilson each provided a written statement that was turned in with this report.  At 
this time the suspects in the offense and the license plate to the suspect vehicle 
are unknown.  
 
(CHIEF’S NOTE:  The suspects in this case were identified and Det. Rogers arrested 
and obtained a signed confession from both for their actions in this case.  Both 
subjects are now in jail) 
 
 



 On 05/31/2017 at approximately 0457 hours I, Officer H. Richard, was patrolling 

north on Hanna Rd.  I observed a gray SUV approach Robinson Rd and turn west.  I 

got behind the vehicle and ran Texas registration FSR1879 through my Mobile 

Data Computer (MDC). My MDC came back with confirmed insurance and valid 

registration. The SUV turned north onto Blueberry Hill and immediately turned 

into the driveway of a house.  When I passed by the SUV, the SUV quickly 

reversed and drove the opposite way, south, back towards Robinson Rd.  I made a 

u-turn to try and catch up to the vehicle.  The SUV failed to stop at the Blueberry 

Hill and Robinson Rd stop sign. While the SUV failed to stop at the stop sign, 

speeds where approximately 20 miles per hour. The SUV turned west on Robinson 

Rd, turned south on Maplewood Rd then west onto Wickwood.  I caught up to the 

SUV and turned on my red and blue emergency lights, making a traffic stop at 

Westwood and Wickwood.  I got out of my vehicle and approached the driver's 

side door.  I advised the driver the reason for the stop was that they failed to stop 

at the stop sign of Blueberry Hill and Robinson Rd.  I asked for the driver's license 

and insurance.  The driver was identified as Nataly Alvarado Hernandez, dob x, 

Hispanic female, by her Texas ID number of x.   

 

I asked Hernandez for consent to search her vehicle because she made multiple 

turns as if she was trying to avoid me and was being very nervous.  Hernandez 

gave verbal consent to search.  I asked Hernandez if she was trying to avoid me 

and she stated yes.  I found a green leaf like substance on the driver's side 

floorboard.  I asked Hernandez when the last time she smoked marijuana was.  

Hernandez stated that her friend had some on him earlier.  As I was speaking to 

Hernandez, I smelled unburned marijuana coming from her person.  I begin 

looking around the area where Hernandez was standing to see if she may have 

thrown down anything.  I found two small black marijuana grinders in the grass in 

the area where she had been standing.  I asked Hernandez if she threw them out 

when I was searching the vehicle.  Hernandez advised that she had it tucked in 

her pants and when I was searching the vehicle, she threw them out.  I asked if 

she had anymore marijuana on her person.  Hernandez stated that she did and 

reached in her crotch area and pulled out a small baggie of the same green leaf 

like substance that I saw on the floorboard.  Hernandez stated that when I turned 

on my red and blue emergency lights, that is when she placed the marijuana in 

her crotch area. 



 

The green leaf like substance was tested with a (E) NIK test Kit, and was positive 

for marijuana. I weighed the marijuana on an Ohaus dial-o-gram scale, and it 

showed a weight of 1.5 grams.  All evidence was placed in the Oak Ridge North 

evidence locker. 

 

I called the on-duty ADA and advised him of the situation.  He accepted charges of 

possession of marihuana, < 2oz.  I placed Hernandez in custody for Possession of 

Marijuana, under 2 ounces.  I transported Hernandez to the Oak Ridge North PD 

for booking paperwork.  Officer Teske (2712) transported Hernandez to the 

Montgomery County Sheriff's Office in Conroe for booking. 

      

       

On 06/02/2017 at approximately 2100 hours, I, Officer H. Richard observed a 

black passenger car traveling North on IH 45 Feeder, 26900 block. The black 

passenger car paper plates were unreadable. I turned on my red and blue 

emergency lights making a traffic stop for obscured plate at the 27200 block of IH 

45 North Feeder, Chair King parking lot.  I got out of my patrol vehicle and 

approached the driver's door.  I smelled a strong odor of marijuana coming from 

the vehicle.  I asked the driver for her license and insurance.  Driver was later 

identified as Patricia Celeste Barrios, dob x, Hispanic female, identified by her 

Texas I.D. number, x.  I asked both the driver and passenger to step out of the 

vehicle.  Passenger was later identified as Victoria Ashley Morales, dob x, Hispanic 

female, identified by her name and date of birth.  I asked both subjects if there is 

any marijuana in the vehicle and they both stated that they have some in their 

purses.  I found a dark pink purse on the front passenger's seat.  Morales stated 

the dark pink purse is hers.  I found a tan purse with a light brown marijuana 

grinder with approximately .5 grams of a green substance on the front passenger 

seat.   Barrios stated that the tan purse is hers and the marijuana is in a pocket 

with the zipper on the inside of the purse.  I found a small usable amount of a 

green leaf like substance.  The green leaf like substance from both subjects were 

tested with a (E) NIK Test kit and was positive for marijuana.  I placed both Barrios 

and Morales subjects in custody at 2105 hours, and place them in the back of my 



patrol vehicle.  Barrios vehicle was later identified as a black Toyota Corolla 

bearing Texas paper tag of 469P113.  Barrios vehicle was towed by The 

Woodlands Wrecker by chip number 155 and stored at 18901 Main St in poor 

condition. I transported both subjects to Montgomery County Sheriff's Office in 

Conroe for booking. 

I called the on-duty ADA and the ADA accepted charges of Possession of 

Marijuana.  Barrios marijuana was weighted by a dial-o-gram scale, with a weight 

of  .7 grams.  Morales marijuana was weighed by a Ohaus dial-o-gram scale, and it 

showed to weigh .7 grams.  All evidence was placed in the Oak Ridge North P.D. 

evidence locker room.           

 
  On 06-03-2017 at approximately 1620 hours I, Officer Helton, was on patrol 

traveling south on Maplewood Dr.  I observed a vehicle bearing Texas license 

plate number GJL7898.  When I ran the plate the return showed that the 

registration was expired August, 2016.  I turned on my emergency red/blue lights 

and stopped the vehicle.  I exited my patrol vehicle and walked up to the driver's 

side window.  I identified the driver as Deven Bettes, white female, date of birth x.  

I ran Bettes through the Montgomery County Sheriff's Office Dispatch.  I was 

advised that Bettes showed to have an active warrant out of the Harris County 

Sheriff's Office for Theft (MB).  The warrant was confirmed by Harris County 

Sheriff's Office and Bettes was placed in custody on the warrant.  A tow slip was 

completed on the vehicle and a copy was placed in Bettes's property at the jail.  

The vehicle was towed by The Woodlands Wrecker to 18901 Main St.  I 

transported Bettes to Montgomery County female booking located in Conroe, 

Texas.  I received a copy of the warrant from Harris County for this report; 

warrant number 2063030, for Theft >= $100<$750.  Bettes was also issued 

citation number 243678 for Display Expired License Plates (REG.)     

 

On 06-03-2017 at approximately 1520 hours I, Officer Helton, was travelling 

northbound on the Interstate Highway 45 North Feeder.  I observed a silver 

Nissan, bearing Texas license plate number BLX5139, traveling northbound on the 

Interstate Highway 45 Feeder.  I observed that the vehicle was traveling at a high 



rate of speed and was swerving in its lane.  I also observed that the driver of the 

vehicle was not signaling when he changed from one lane to the other.  I turned 

on my emergency red/blue lights and conducted a traffic stop.  The driver opened 

the driver's side door and exited the vehicle before I exited my patrol vehicle.  l 

gave the command to the driver to sit back down in the vehicle and he compiled.  

I walked up to the vehicle and observed the driver, who was later identified as 

Jayme Estrada, hispanic male, date of birth x, place an open container of beer on 

the back floorboard of the vehicle, after spilling some of the contents on the 

middle console area.  I then told Estrada to exit the vehicle and moved him in 

front of my patrol vehicle.  I observed that Estrada's eyes were glassy and blood 

shot and I also noticed a strong odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from 

Estrada's breath as he spoke.  Estrada did not speak English very well and I 

requested a Spanish speaking Unit to the scene.  Deputy Macias, (Unit 2P1005) 

with the Montgomery County Sheriff's Office, arrived and was able to speak to 

Estrada.  Due to Estrada moving the open container of beer to the back of the 

vehicle when I first approached and the multiple empty beer cans in the back seat 

area, I took custody of the beer can that Estrada was messing with when I first 

walked up.  I noticed that the beer can was cool to the touch and that there was 

about half of the beer still in the can.  I observed that the beer was a Modelo 12 

oz can.  Estrada said that he was drinking the beer and had consumed 4 or 5 

before he was stopped.  After taking control of the beer, I asked Estrada if he 

would consent to SFST testing to check to see if he was intoxicated.  Deputy 

Macias started conducting the SFST testing and Estrada passed all tests.  Because 

Estrada did not have a Texas driver's license, I was able to locate a family friend 

who arrived a short time later.  The friend was identified as Francisca Marban, 

hispanic female, date of birth x, who was the owner of the vehicle.   Estrada was 

issued citation number 243677 for Open Container.  I had Estrada pour the rest of 

the beer that was open on the ground in front of my patrol vehicle.  Estrada was 

released into the care and custody of Marban, who also drove the vehicle home.     

 

On 06/03/2017 at approximately 1025 hours I, Officer Teske, was checking vehicle 
speeds in the 26400 to 26500 blocks of the IH 45 North Feeder Road, using a 



Kustom Pro Laser 4 Infrared Lidar System. I observed a white Honda Civic (2 door), 
displaying paper TX LP # 38W8167, traveling at a fast pace in the left lane. The 
Lidar indicated the vehicle was traveling 55 mph after passing by my location and 
entering the 26500 block of the IH 45 North Feeder Road. The highest posted 
speed for this roadway is 45 mph. I caught up to the vehicle, still traveling at a fast 
pace in the left lane, and observed the expiration date printed on the paper tag 
was 04/23/2017. A check on my MDT confirmed the registration was expired. I 
stopped the vehicle on Paula Lane just east of the 27200 block of the IH 45 North 
Feeder Road. I made contact with the driver and asked for his license and 
insurance. As he handed me his driver's license, I observed an open bottle, 
approximately 3/4 full, of MD 20-20 (alcoholic beverage) and a partially crushed 
25 ounce can of Bud Light Straw-Ber-Rita (alcoholic beverage) laying on the back 
left seat, in plain view from the outside. I observed a glass ashtray on the center 
console next to the gear shift/emergency brake handle, that was filled with what 
appeared to be loose cigar tobacco (subject was currently smoking a cigarette). 
The driver identified himself by TDL # x as 19 year old Paul Kamyshin, w/m, dob x. 
I asked how old he was and he stated that he was 19. I asked him if there was 
anything illegal in the vehicle or anything he was not supposed to have, and asked 
him to step from the vehicle. He stated there was a little in the vehicle as he 
stepped out. I assumed he was referring to marijuana. I told him that there was 
alcohol on the back seat, and the contents of the emptied out cigar are a common 
give-away for marijuana use. I had him sit on a curb next to the vehicle. Officer 
Craig checked by and watched him as I began a search of the vehicle. I observed 
there was marijuana debris strewn about the driver floorboard area and center 
console area. I located a Newport cigarette package inside the center console arm 
rest between the front driver and passenger seats. The cigarette box had a 
handwritten note on the outside of the box, "For us.  Love Ya boo!  xoxo Baby 
Girl". The cigarette box contained a package of Zig Zag rolling papers and a piece 
of tan/blue plastic bag that contained a green leafy substance I know, through 
training and experience as a Police Officer, to be a usable amount of marijuana. I 
located the one 3/4 full bottle of MD 20/20 375ml Orange Jubilee 13% alcohol, by 
volume, grape wine on the back left seat and a second unopened/full bottle of 
MD 20/20 375ml Orange Jubilee 13% alcohol, by volume, grape wine on the back 
right seat under a blanket. I determined the Bud Light Straw-Ber-Rita can was 
empty and had been used at some point as a makeshift ashtray. I placed 
Kamyshin under arrest for Possession of Marijuana (under 2 oz) and had him sit in 
the rear of my patrol car. I tested the marijuana using a NIC Test Kit, and the test 



kit showed a positive result for marijuana. I destroyed the two bottles of MD 
20/20 by pouring them onto the grass next to the roadway (the bottles were 
destroyed by throwing them in the trash). The vehicle was towed by Rickey's 
Wrecker and was stored at 9131 SH 242 in Conroe. I transported Kamyshin to the 
MCSO South County Jail for booking. He was also issued ORNPD citation 806420 
for the offenses of Expired Registration (04/23/2017) and Minor in Possession 
Alcoholic Beverage. He was warned for Speeding. 

After leaving the jail, I took the Newport box containing the Zig Zags and 
marijuana to the ORNPD. The marijuana was weighed using an Ohaus Dial-O-
Gram scale, and the marijuana weighed 2.4 grams. The marijuana, rolling papers, 
and cigarette box were marked, tagged, and placed into evidence at the ORNPD. 

The registered owner of the vehicle returned to Ricky Tanner, 7207 Lugary Dr, 
Houston, TX 77036.    

 
 
On 06/03/2017 at approximately 1930 hours, I, Officer H. Richard (2722) was out 

on traffic at Babins restaurant, located at 19529 IH 45 North Feeder.  I observed a 

brown passenger car displaying a paper plate in the back window, north bound on 

the service road passing my traffic stop.  I finished my traffic stop and pulled onto 

the Feeder to catch up to the vehicle.  I made a traffic stop at IH 45 and Tamina in 

the Walgreens parking lot for Improper Placement of License Plate.  I exited my 

patrol vehicle and approached on the driver's door.  I asked the driver for his 

license and insurance.  Driver was later identified as Shelby Rodriguez, dob x, 

Hispanic male, identified by his Texas I.D. card number x.  Rodriguez stated that 

he did not have a license but was able to provide a name and date of birth.  I also 

asked the passenger for her I.D.  Passenger willingly gave me her I.D. and she was 

identified as Arjina Paijour Cooks, dob x, black female, identified by her Texas I.D. 

number of 36741018.  I went back to my patrol vehicle to check both subjects on 

my Mobile Data Computer.  As I was checking Rodriguez, I looked up and 

observed Rodriguez reaching in the center console, takes out a blue zip lock 

baggie, and put some type of substance in his mouth.  I got out of my patrol 

vehicle got to the driver's side to try and stop Rodriguez from swallowing the 

substance.  I asked Rodriguez to open his mouth and observed white residue on 

his tongue, Rodriguez stated that he just swallowed a white Xanax pill.  Rodriguez 

stated that it was approximately 1 mg.  I placed Rodriguez in custody for 

tampering with evidence.  I asked Rodriguez if there were anything else in his 



vehicle and Rodriguez stated that he had approximately 2 grams of marijuana in 

the center console.  I opened the center console and Cooks stated that she put 

the marijuana in her Vagina.  I asked Cook to exit the vehicle and she reached 

down in her vagina and pulled out two baggies of a green leaf like substance, 

from police training and experience I know it to be a usable amount of marijuana.  

Marijuana was tested with a (E) NIK test kit and tested positive for marijuana.  

Marijuana was weighed by a Ohaus Dail-O-Gram scale and it showed a weigh of 

3.2 grams. I placed Cooks in custody for Possession of Marijuana and placed her in 

the back seat of my patrol vehicle.  I had Medic 25 to check on Rodriguez, due to 

Rodriguez eating a Xanax pill.  Medic 25 released Rodriguez and I placed him in 

the back seat of my patrol vehicle. I called out for a 15-minute Oak Ridge North 

P.D. Wrecker.  Rodriguez was issued citation number 1100101 for Expired 

Operators License and Wrong, Altered, Or Obscured Registration.  The on-duty 

ADA accepted charges on Rodriguez for Tampering with Evidence 36.05(e-1) 

Tampering with a witness FV case and also accept charges on Cooks for 

Possession of Marijuana 481.121(b)(1) (POM) POSS MARIJ <2oz.  I conducted an 

inventory of the vehicle and there was a black dog in the back seat. STG D. Barry 

transported Rodriguez dog to the Animal Shelter, located at 8535 Highway 242, 

Conroe, TX 77385.  Rodriguez vehicle was towed by Milstead Wrecker by chip 

number 152 and stored at 29707 W. Hawthorne in poor condition.   I transported 

both Cooks and Rodriguez to Montgomery County Sheriff's Office in Conroe for 

booking.     The marijuana and the green baggie that the Xanax pill came out of 

was placed in the Oak Ridge North P.D. evidence locker room.        

 
On 06/04/2017 0245 hours, I, Officer H. Richard (2722) observed a blue passenger 

car travel at a fast pace, approximately 40 miles per hour, on Robinson Rd 

approaching Hanna Rd.  The vehicle hit the curb and  fail to stop locking up his 

brakes, sliding through the stop sign. Then the vehicle turned south on Hanna into 

oncoming traffic, stopping in the North lane facing south.  I turn on my red and 

blue emergency lights making a traffic stop in the middle of the roadway of Hanna 

and Robinson Rd.  I exit my vehicle and approached on the driver's door and 

made contact with the driver.  Driver was later identified as David Nathan 

Arandia, dob x, white male, identified by his Texas driver's license number of x.  I 

asked Arandia to step out of the vehicle and to stand in-front of my patrol vehicle.  

While Arandia got out the vehicle he used the car to keep balance and was 



unstable on his feet, swaying back and forth.  The scene was a blacktop public 

roadway in Oak Ridge North city limits, Montgomery County, Texas. This roadway 

is well lit by nearby artificial lighting and composed of flat, dry, level blacktop. On 

this night the weather outside was cloudy and calm. The vehicle was a   2009 

Nissan Altima bearing Texas license plate # HSF0136.  I then asked him where he 

was coming from and Arandia stated that he was coming form Los Angeles and 

was heading to Pasadena. While talking with him I could smell a strong odor of an 

alcoholic beverage coming from his breath that got stronger as he spoke. His eyes 

were bloodshot and glassy, his speech was slurred, and he had a hard time 

keeping his balance on his feet. He admitted to drinking just prior to my contact 

with him. Arandia consented to the taking of all my tests. I asked him to step rear 

of his vehicle and in front of my patrol car so I could perform the Standardized 

Field Sobriety Test on him determining if he was intoxicated or safe to drive. I am 

certified to administer the Standardized Field Sobriety Test including Horizontal 

Gaze Nystagmus. Prior to the testing. He advised me that he had never received 

any major head injuries that would prevent him from having this test 

administered on him. He had equal pupil size and equal tracking in both eyes. Also 

note that I did not witness any resting Nystagmus in either eye prior to doing this 

test.  

 

I then administered the Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus Test on him. This test is a 

Standardized Field Sobriety Test that is used to detect Nystagmus when following 

a stimulus side to side. Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus is defined as an involuntary 

jerking of the eyes that occurs when there is a disturbance of the vestibular 

system or the oculomotor control of the eye.  Alcohol and other certain central 

nervous system depressants, inhalants, and phencyclidine cause the presence of 

Nystagmus. 

 

Upon administering this test I observed the following clues of intoxication: 

* Lack of smooth pursuit (Both left & right eye). 

* Distinct and Sustained Nystagmus at maximum deviation (Both left & right eye). 

* Onset Nystagmus prior to 45 degrees (Both left & right eye). 



 

Note: There were a total of six clues observed in this test, I observed Nystagmus 

in both the left and the right eye during all of the above steps. During the above 

mentioned test there could only be a total of six clues that could be possible. 

I demonstrated and explained this test in its entirety making sure that  Arandia 

had no further questions prior to beginning. I advised him that he was not to stop 

once he began or until I told him he was through with the test. I advised him that 

the test which he was about to perform was a timed test and took exactly 30 

seconds to complete. I advised him that once he began the test I would start the 

clock advising him when 30 seconds had lapsed. Once he began the test I 

witnessed him lift his foot off of the ground as instructed beginning the test. 

 

I then provided instructions and demonstrated to him how to perform the Walk & 

Turn Test. The testing area was flat, dry, and clean of any major debris. This test is 

a divided attention Standardized Field Sobriety Test.  Upon him conducting this 

test, I observed the following clues of intoxication:  

* Cant keep balance. 

* Steps off line. 

* Uses arms to balance. 

* Stops walking 

* Starts too soon 

* Misses heel to toe. 

* Wrong Number of Steps  

* Improper Turn 

Note: There were 8 clues observed out a total number of eight clues that could be 

possible. 

 



I then provided instructions and demonstrated to him how to perform the One 

Leg Stand Test.  This test is a divided attention Standardized Field Sobriety Test. 

Upon him conducting this test, I observed the following clues of intoxication: 

* Sways while balancing. 

* Puts foot down. 

* Uses arms to balance. 

* Did not raise foot off of ground 

Note: There were four clues observed out of a total number of four clues that 

could be possible.  

 

I demonstrated and explained this test in its entirety making sure that Arandia 

had no further questions prior to beginning. I advised him that he was not to stop 

once he began or until he felt that he was completely through with the test. Once 

he began the test I witnessed him to take nine steps in the forward advancement 

making an improper backwards turn to the right. While walking the initial nine 

steps of the instructed nine steps process I witnessed him miss heel to toe, extend 

his arms more than 6in from his side using them for balance, step off of the line 

not being able to balance while walking. Once he completed the turn to the right I 

witnessed him return to the area in which he began the test, taking nine steps to 

get there out of the initially instructed nine. Once again on the return portion of 

this test I witnessed him miss heel to toe, extend his arms more than 6in from his 

side using them for balance, and step off of the line not being able to balance 

while walking. Note: As I demonstrated the test to him, he stepped out of the 

start position several times to keep from falling or to assist in maintaining his 

balance. While performing this test Arandia performed the test with flat soled 

shoes on. 

 

While on scene I asked him to close his eyes, tilt his head back and count out loud 

with his hands down and feet together. He advised me that he had five beers of 

Anger Orchard, one liter of vodka. 



I contacted the on-call ADA, who advised me that he would accept charges 

against Arandia for Driving While Intoxicated 

 

At approximately 0300 hours, upon Arandia completing the above tests, it was 

apparent that he did not have the normal mental or physical faculties by reason 

of the introduction of CNS Depressants into his body. After totaling my clues I 

found the driver to be intoxicated. I placed him under arrest for Driving While 

Intoxicated, an offense arising from Chapter 49.04 of the Texas Penal Code. He 

was eventually transported without incident to the MCSO jail without further 

incident.  

Arandia was read the DIC 23 paper work. He consented to providing me with a 

specimen of his blood.  Arandia's vehicle was inventoried and towed by South 

County Wrecker by chip number 24 and stored at 28075 Robinson Rd in poor 

condition.  I transported Arandia to Montgomery County Sheriff's Office in Conroe 

for a blood specimen.  Blood specimen was performed by R.N. C. Geno at 0319 

hours.  After blood specimen was completed Arandia was booked in. 

Arandia was provided with a copy of the DIC 23.  Blood specimen was placed in 

Oak Ridge North P.D. evidence locker.         

(ALL THAT FOR ONE DWI…..) 

 
  On 06-04-2017 at approximately 1402 hours I, Officer Helton, was dispatched to 

Pallotta's Restaurant, located at 27630 Interstate Highway 45 North, for a 

Burglary of Motor Vehicle.  I arrived on location and observed the reportee 

standing next to her vehicle, a black Cadillac SUV.  I observed that the vehicle was 

bearing Texas license plate number BP73115 and was sitting in a parking space 

facing south, just west of Pallotta's.  I also observed that the front passenger side 

window was broken out and there was glass on the ground next to the vehicle.  I 

met with the reportee, who was identified as Christina Meineke, white female, 

date of birth X.  Meineke said that they arrived at approximately 1335 hours and 

went into Pallotta's Restaurant for a graduation party.  Meineke said that they 

came back out to the vehicle at approximately 1345 hours and noticed that the 

passenger side window was broken out.  She then called 911.  Meineke said that 



she did not see anyone near the vehicle and did not see a vehicle driving away 

after the incident.  Meineke said that there was a bag, which belonged to her 

daughter that was taken from the vehicle.  The bag was a black dance bag with 

her daughter's initials on the outside of the bag (SME.)   The estimated cost of the 

bag is $100.00.  Meineke said that inside the bag was, a purple LuLu Lemon sports 

bra, estimated cost of $50.00, and black LuLu Lemon shorts, estimated cost of 

$50.00.  I was also informed that there were two pairs of dance shoes at $25.00 

each, in the bag, along with a IPhone charger.  Meineke gave a estimated value of 

the items inside the bag, the bag itself, and the damage to the passenger window 

to total approximately $750.00.  I was unable to find any latent prints on the 

vehicle.  Meineke said that none of the items had serial numbers, so I was unable 

to enter any of the items into NCIC/TCIC.  Meineke was given a case number. 

There were no video cameras in the area and no description of the actors or the 

actor's vehicle was obtained.         

 

While on patrol at approx 12:20 AM on 06-05-2017 I, Sgt. Barry, was southbound 
on IH-45, in the 26500 block, and saw a grey 2001 Dodge Durango bearing TX LP 
JFP 9600. I ran the license plate and the return showed unconfirmed insurance, 
with no match within the last 45 days. This vehicle exited IH-45 at the Rayford Rd. 
exit where I activated my emergency lights. The vehicle came to a stop on the IH-
45 W. Feeder Rd. at Valleywood. I approached the driver's door and the window 
was rolled down. I could smell a strong odor of marihuana coming from the 
vehicle and could see smoke exiting the vehicle from the open window. I 
identified the driver as Aaron Ellis McGowen, w/m, DOB X, by his Texas drivers 
license # X. I advised McGowen that the return on his vehicle showed that he did 
not have insurance. McGowen advised he knows about that. McGowen said that 
he was about to get paid and would get insurance then. I returned to my patrol 
unit and asked another unit to check by with me for a vehicle search. While 
waiting for the second Officer to arrive, I ran a check of McGowen's driver's 
license and started the citation. Oak Ridge North Officer Stafford and Officer 
Richard arrived at about the same time. I advised them that I could smell 
marihuana coming from the vehicle and to ask the driver and passenger to exit 
the vehicle. The passenger was identified as Jermonni Dante Washington, b/m, 
DOB X. Officer Stafford and I searched the vehicle while Officer Richard watched 



the occupants. I found a yellow and black pipe with marihuana residue and there 
was a strong odor of marihuana in the ash trey located on the dashboard. In the 
back seat area was a grey backpack. I asked whose backpack it was, before 
looking into it. McGowen stated it was his. Inside the backpack, I found a clear 
plastic device that I know, from my training and experience as a Police Officer, to 
be used to hand roll marihuana  "joints". This rolling device had the smell of 
marihuana. I also found in the back seat a 12 oz Sprite looking can that the 
bottom unscrewed and could be used to hide something. This "Sprite can" did not 
have anything inside and smelled new. I left it in the vehicle. I did not find a 
usable amount of marihuana. I issued McGowen Oak Ridge North citation 
#890355 for fail to maintain financial responsibility and possession of drug 
paraphernalia. Both McGowen and Washington were released. The marihuana 
paraphernalia was photographed and destroyed and placed in the trash.  
 

On 06-06-2017 at approx. 1230 hours I, Officer R. E. Craig III, was on routine 

patrol in the area IH-45 S at Sawdust.  I was southbound on the feeder when I 

observed a blue Xterra that I believed to be driven by and/or associated with 

Bernard Russian, w/m, dob X.  I had been advised by Sgt. C. Nation that Bernard 

Russian had an active felony warrant issued and to be careful if we see him 

because he is always a flight risk and may run if we try and stop him.  Bernard 

Russian has been living with family members at the address of 27194 Lana Ln, in 

Oak Ridge North.  This individual has been handled many times in the past for 

drugs and theft.   

I knew the TX LP on the blue Xterra to be TX LP # BXW5237.  I have run this TX LP 

before while it was parked at the 27194 Lana Ln address.  This vehicle shows the 

registration to be expired and also shows the registered owner to be Rosa Linda 

Borrego at 30000 FM 2978 Rd., APT #313, Magnolia, TX. 77354.  I was able to 

confirm the TX LP on the rear of the blue Xterra was indeed TX LP # BXW5237.  I 

advised MCSO of a traffic stop on this vehicle in the area of IH-45 S near Pruitt Rd.  

While behind the vehicle, I could tell that it was occupied by another male in the 

front passenger seat.             

I activated the emergency lights on my police motorcycle at IH-45 S near Pruitt 

Rd, but the subject did not yield to the lights.  I called out on the radio and 

advised MCSO Dispatch the vehicle was not stopping.  I then activated the siren 



on my patrol motorcycle but the vehicle continued southbound on the Feeder Rd 

at a high rate of speed as he entered Harris County.   

Other Units were en route to assist with the traffic stop since the vehicle was not 

stopping.  I advised MCSO Dispatch that I was in pursuit of this vehicle and 

Dispatch closed the channel.  The vehicle continued on the southbound feeder at 

speeds of 75 - 80 mph in a posted 45 mph zone.  As we approached the light at 

Springwood Village Blvd., the southbound light had turned red and the vehicle 

driven by Bernard Russian crossed the red light and luckily did not strike any other 

vehicles. The vehicle entered onto the main lanes and drove on the right shoulder 

at a speeds greater than the posted speed, passing several vehicles on the 

roadway and then exited the FM 2920/Tomball exit.  The vehicle continued south 

on the Feeder Rd at speeds in excess of 80 mph in a posted 45 mph zone and then 

turned west onto the Spring Stuebner exit.  Once on Spring Stuebner westbound, 

I observed the passenger throw something from the vehicle but I could not tell 

what it was.  The actor vehicle then turned south onto Spring Plaza Dr., still 

driving at at speeds in excess of 70 mph in a posted 30 mph zone.  I stayed with 

the vehicle at a safe distance as there was very light traffic on this roadway.  

When the vehicle approached FM 2920 the vehicle came to a stop at a green 

light, the passenger door flew open, and a white male jumped out of the vehicle.  

I ordered him to the ground.  This subject complied and he was taken into custody 

as the actor vehicle, driven by Bernard Russian, continued south across FM 2920.  

The roadway changes from Spring Plaza Dr. to Nannette on the south side of FM 

2920.  I advised MCSO Dispatch that I was out of the pursuit and the last known 

direction of the blue Xterra driven by Bernard Russian.  

I remained on location with the passenger that had jumped out of the vehicle.  I 

got off my motorcycle, placed this male in handcuffs, and waited on scene for 

another Unit.  Oak Ridge North PD Unit #2712 arrived on scene and placed this 

subject in his patrol car.  This male was identified as William Andrew Bassett, 

w/m, dob X.  I asked this subject who was driving the vehicle and he stated, "My 

buddy Bernie."  Bassett said he told Bernie to stop several times but Bernie did 

not listen.  Bernie is a confirmed AKA used by Bernard Russian.  MCSO was given 

this subject's name and date of birth.  A few minutes later MCSO Dispatch advised 

that William Andrew Bassett had an active warrant for Theft, warrant # 2154208, 

out of the Harris County Sheriff's Office and wanted to know if they needed to 

confirm the warrant.  I advised her to CONFIRM the warrant.  Bassett was then 



transported to the Oak Ridge North Police Department, without incident.  The 

warrant was confirmed.   Once out at the office Unit # 2705, Sgt. C. Nation spoke 

to the subject.  The subject was then transported to the MCSO South County Jail 

by Oak Ridge North Officer J. Young.  Officer Young had a separate incident, # 

17P002896, issued to the transport of this subject to South County Jail.  

This pursuit went a total distance of 4.3 miles.    

(CHIEF’S NOTE:  THE RUSSIAN SUBJECT WAS ARRESTED THE NEXT DAY ON FELONY 

WARRANTS FROM THIS AGENCY AT A RESIDENCE IN HARRIS COUNTY.  THE 

SUBJECT AGAIN ATTEMPTED TO RUN, BUT WAS UNSUCCESSFUL.)          

 
On 06-07-2017 at approximately 1241 hours I, Officer Teske, and Officer Craig, 
were dispatched to a suspicious person call at 27326 Robinson Road.  Dispatch 
advised that a male and female were begging for money from customers in the 
business strip.  Officer Craig arrived on scene and made contact with the male and 
female.  The male was identified by name and date of birth as David Heath, w/m, 
dob X, and the female was identified by name and date of birth as Crystal Heath, 
b/f, dob X.  A check with MCSO Dispatch revealed that David was wanted out of 
Montgomery County JP #4 for warrant # 321216AA - Failure to Appear.  The 
warrant was confirmed and I placed David under arrest for the warrant.  I 
transported David to the MCSO South County Jail for booking.  Crystal was 
released from the scene.  
 

  On 06-07-2017 at approximately 1708 hours I, Officer Helton, was dispatched to 
Marilyn Edgar Park, located at 26531 S. Hillside, for a suspicious vehicle and 
activity.  I was advised that there was a black Dodge Dart, bearing Texas license 
plate number JMC6151, with multiple people in the vehicle smoking drugs.  I was 
also advised that a male and a female left the vehicle and were in the mens 
bathroom having sex.  I went en route to the above location.  When I turned 
south on Westwood, I observed a black Dodge Dart, bearing Texas license plate 
number JMC6151, pass me traveling northbound on Westwood, approaching 
Eastwood.  Due to the call that I was en route to and then observing that the 
vehicle was now traveling away from the area; I turned around and turned on my 
red/blue emergency lights.  The vehicle stopped, I exited my patrol vehicle, and 
walked up to the driver's side of the vehicle.  The driver of the vehicle was 
identified as Walter Strong, black male, date of birth X.  As I was talking to Strong, 



I noticed a strong odor of unburnt marijuana coming from the vehicle.  I asked 
Strong to exit the vehicle and continued to identify everyone else in the vehicle.  
The front seat passenger was identified as Yaira Navarro, white female, date of 
birth X; the driver's side back seat passenger was identified as Ismael Umanzor, 
white male, date of birth X; and the passenger side back seat passenger was 
identified as Leonardo Fernandez, white male, date of birth X.  The three 
passengers were asked to exit the vehicle.  Lt. Libby, (Unit 2701) with Oak Ridge 
North PD, was giving me descriptors of the actors who were in the mens 
bathroom having sex.  I was able to determine that Navarro and  Umanzor were 
the two having sex in the mens bathroom.  Both Navarro and Umanzor admitted 
to having sex in the mens bathroom.  I was also advised that no one had observed 
the incident, they just heard the noise that the two were making in the restroom.  
While I was identifying the occupants, Lt. Libby arrived and conducted the search 
of the vehicle.  During the search, a usable amount of a green leafy substance was 
found in Navarro's purse contained in a prescription bottle.  When I opened the 
prescription bottle, I observed multiple small plastic bags with a green leafy debris 
and one plastic sandwich size bag with a usable amount of the green leafy 
substance.  From my training and experience as a Police Officer, I knew the green 
leafy substance was marijuana.  Lt. Libby also found a blue plastic grinder with a 
green leafy substance, in the middle console of the vehicle.  Lt. Libby also found a 
three to four inch cigar with the same green leafy substance inside the cigar and a 
glass filter that Navarro said she uses for smoking marijuana through the cigar.  I 
used a NIK test kit for the green leafy substance and it showed to be marijuana.  
The marijuana was found in Navarro's property (purse) and Navarro was placed in 
custody for Possession of Marijuana, less than 2 oz (MB).  Navarro was read her 
Miranda warning before being placed in the back of the patrol vehicle.  The other 
three subjects were released and Navarro was transported to female booking, 
located at the Montgomery County Jail in Conroe, Texas without incident.  After 
arriving back at the Oak Ridge North Police Department, I used a Dial-O-Gram 
scale to weigh the marijuana.  The weight showed to be 2.3 grams.  The 
marijuana, grinder, and the filter that was found were placed in the Oak Ridge 
North evidence locker.  
 

On 06/08/2017 at approximately 0210 hours I, Officer Stafford (Unit 2723) 

observed a White, Chevrolet Tahoe, bearing Texas temporary plate 903326B, that 

was traveling northbound on Hanna at Alana.  While the vehicle was headed 

towards me the driver failed to dim the headlights and passed my patrol vehicle 



as I was driving southbound.  Upon seeing this, I turned around and caught up to 

the vehicle at Hanna and Robinson as the vehicle turned eastbound onto 

Robinson.  As the vehicle turned I activated my emergency lights and the vehicle 

stopped at Robinson and Curry. 

I exited my patrol vehicle and made contact with a white female driver identified 

as Sarah Mccaskey (DOB X) from her verbal statement.  The front seat and only 

passenger was identified as Justin Lawson (DOB X) from his verbal statement.  

While speaking with both parties, I was advised that Sarah did not have a driver's 

license but Justin did.  After speaking with the parties, I returned to my patrol 

vehicle and ran both parties through MCSO database.  Sarah came back with a not 

eligible ID card that was currently suspended for no driver's license and Justin's 

return came back that his license was expired since 2015.  While looking at the 

returns, Officer Richard arrived and I asked him to go to the passenger and see if 

he had found his insurance card yet.  When Officer Richard walked up to the 

passenger door he asked Justin if he had anything illegal in the vehicle and Justin 

handed him a glass pipe.  The glass pipe had burnt residue and you could smell 

the odor of marijuana emitting of the pipe.  At that time, Officer Richard had 

Justin exit the vehicle and to stand at the front of my patrol vehicle.  Officer 

Richard then had the driver Sarah exit the vehicle and both parties were asked if 

anything else was in the vehicle that was illegal and they both said no.  Justin and 

Sarah were both advised that the vehicle was going to be searched due to having 

drug paraphernalia in the vehicle.  Officer Richard then conducted a search of the 

vehicle and located a clear glass pipe that is commonly used to smoke meth was 

found.  After Officer Richard found the pipe, I went to the glove box and located a 

glass bong.  Officer Richard located a usable amount of marijuana in the zipper 

pocket of Sarah's purse.  Upon locating the marijuana, I asked Sarah and Justin 

about it and Justin stated that it was his but it was in her purse.  The marijuana 

was tested using a NIK test kit and had a positive test result for marijuana.  The 

glass bong was placed back into the vehicle due to it was not used for narcotics at 

the time of the stop.   

Once I heard that Justin stated that the marijuana was his I contacted ADA Dudley 

and he advised that he would accept the charge of Possession of Marijuana on 

Justin due him stating that it was his marijuana.  After hearing this, I placed Justin 

under arrest and placed him into the rear seat of my patrol vehicle.  I then issued 

Sarah an Oak Ridge North #806453 citation for Fail to Obtain DL, and Fail to Dim 



Headlights Meeting.  The vehicle was then towed by Keith's, and was towed to 

27714 Robinson in poor condition and the owner was aware.  Sarah was then 

given a courtesy transport by Officer Richard to King Fuel located at IH 45 and 

Tamina.  Justin was then transported to MCSO South County Jail without any 

further incident.  After arriving at the jail, I issued Justin an Oak Ridge North 

citation #804454 for Possession of Drug Paraphernalia, and Permitting 

Unauthorized Person to Drive. 

Upon Justin being placed into MCSO custody, I returned to Oak Ridge North PD 

and placed the marijuana, marijuana pipe, and clear glass pipe into evidence.  The 

total weight of the marijuana that was placed into evidence had a total weight of 

1.2 grams.       

 
  On 06-08-2017 at approximately 1414 hours I, Officer Helton, was dispatched to 

a Threat call at DCL America Inc. located at 27603 Commerce Oaks Dr.  I arrived 

on location and met with the reportee, who was identified as Adan Moreno 

Hispanic male date of birth X.  Moreno said that on 06-07-2017, he was on 

Facebook, when a female, who was identified as Altagracia Hernandez, by her 

Facebook account asked to be friends.  Moreno accepted the friends request and 

started messaging Hernandez on Facebook, before giving Hernandez his personal 

cell number.  Moreno said that the two began to text each other, and Hernandez 

started sending pictures of herself to Moreno's phone.  Moreno said that there 

were about 5 pictures that the Hernandez subject sent to his phone.  Moreno said 

by this time, he thought this was strange and thought that someone was playing a 

joke or if it was a scam him.  Moreno said that after the photos were sent to him 

the Hernandez subject text Moreno and said that she offers massages with 

“happy endings”.  Moreno said at that point he knew something was not right 

with the Hernandez subject and he quit texting her.   

  At approximately 2245 hours on 06-07-2017, Moreno said that he was in bed 

and had not text the Hernandez subject for many hours and was going to bed, 

when he received a text from a unknown person, who introduced himself as 

Pedro Gomez, Gomez said that he was Hernandez's handler and that Moreno 

owed him money for the photos that Hernandez sent him earlier in the day and 

then sent a video of a male being shot and killed. Gomez also said that if he did 

not receive the money that Moreno owed him that he would come to Moreno's 



work place and hurt Moreno's family.  Gomez also sent photos of Moreno's family 

in a text to Moreno.  Gomez said that Moreno owed him $80 per picture and with 

the 5 pictures Gomez said that it was $400.00.  Gomez and Moreno texted back 

and forth for a while and Gomez said that Moreno should send the money 

through Western Union to the name of Ariel Francisco Vargas Baez in Santo 

Domingo Republican Dominican.   As of today, 06-08-2017, Moreno said that he 

has been receiving multiple text from the Gomez subject and received multiple 

threats towards his life and his families lives.  Moreno said that he was scared for 

his life and called the Police Department.  When looking at the pictures and the 

text messages that Moreno had on his phone, I observed that the text was in 

Spanish, I do not speak Spanish and not able to read Spanish and had to get 

Moreno to interpret the text messages sent to him.  Moreno also completed a 

voluntary statement about the incident.   

  Moreno's statement reads ” Yesterday I receive a Friends request on Facebook 

from a girl She started to text me asking me if I was interested in having sex with 

her I thought it was fake so I stop texting her a man texting me asking to pay and 

threating me to give him money he said he will kill me and my family that he 

knows where I live, work and family that if I don't pay thing well get serious I felt 

scared of my life he will kill me shoot me  from seeing the video he send me if I 

didn't do what he ask for.  He said I owe him $400.00 and to send the money by 

Western Union name, Ariel Francisco Vargas Baez Destination- Santo Domingo 

Republica Dominicana.” 

  Moreno was able to give a copy on a thumb drive, of the text messages and the 

video and the photos.  Due to the text being in Spanish I gave the thumb drive to 

Officer Rodgers with the Oak Ridge North Police Department, for the text 

messages to be interpreted.   Officer Rodgers said that he searched the phone 

number of the Gomez subject and did not receive any data about the Gomez 

subject and would continue to investigate the incident.    

 

On 06/07/2017 at approximately 2140 hours, I, Officer H. Richard observed a 

sliver Ford F-150 traveling at the 27000 block of IH 45 South Feeder.  I checked 

Texas plate FPC3061 through my Mobile Data Computer (MDT).  My MDT stated 

that the F-150 plates was expired since 05/2017 and the vehicle had unconfirmed 

insurance for more than 45 days.  I turned on my red and blue emergency lights, 



making a traffic stop at IH 45 South Feeder and Woodlands Parkway.  I exited my 

patrol vehicle and approached on the driver's side.  I made contact with the driver 

and asked for his license and insurance.  Driver stated that he does not have 

current insurance and handed me a temporary identification card which was valid 

until 07/31/2017.  Driver was later identified as Michael Wayne Moticha, dob x, 

white male, identified by his TXDL number x.  I checked Moticha through 

Montgomery County Sheriff's dispatch, his D.L. came back with a surcharge. 

His surcharges are as follows; 

 ENFORC ACTN: SUSPENDED - SURCHARGE DUE INTOXICATION 

STATUS: ACTIVE BEGIN DT: 11072016 END DT: 12319999 LIFT DT:          STATE: TX 

I placed Moticha in custody at 2147 hours.  I inventory Moticha vehicle for my tow 

slip and found a green leaf like substance on the passenger's floor board. The 

green leaf like substance was tested for marijuana, using a (E) NIK KIT.  The NIK 

KIT tested positive for marijuana. I called the on duty ADA and she accepted 

charges for DWLI with no insurance, Class B and Possession of Marijuana <20z.  

Moticha's vehicle was towed by South County Wrecker by chip number 24 and 

stored at 28075 Robinson Rd in fair condition. Moticha was issued citation 

number 1100110, for displaying expired license plates (REG) and unconfirmed 

insurance for more than 45 days.  I transported Moticha to South County Jail for 

booking.  I weighed the marijuana using a Ohaus Dail-O-Gram scale, scale showed 

a weigh of .4 grams. Marijuana was labeled and placed in the Oak Ridge North 

P.D. evidence locker.    

 

On 06/08/20017 at approximately 2338 hours I, Officer Stafford (Unit 2723) 

observed a Toyota Sequoia bearing Texas license plate AS02629 that was turning 

southbound onto Patsy from Woodson.  As the vehicle turned, I noticed that the 

headlights went out on the vehicle and never came back on as the vehicle turned.  

I followed behind the vehicle and was able to tell that the headlights were still not 

on but the parking lights were working.  As I following behind the vehicle I ran the 

license plate and confirmed that everything was valid.  Once the vehicle got to 

Patsy and Lana, I activated my emergency lights and the vehicle stopped at 145 

Robinson in the Valero parking lot. 



I exited my patrol vehicle and made contact with a black male identified as Justin 

D Shun Walter (DOB x) from his Texas driver's license.  While speaking with Justin, 

I advised him that I stopped him for his headlights not working and he stated that 

they were working.  Justin asked if he could get out of the vehicle and see for 

himself and I said ok.  Justin first turned on his high beam lights and they worked 

but as soon as he turned them back to low beams they went out.  After Justin saw 

that I asked for his license and I told him that I would not write him a citation for 

his lights.   

Once I told Justin that I would not write him a citation, I went back to my patrol 

vehicle and ran his license through MCSO database and discovered that he had 

two active warrants for his arrest.  The warrants were out of Judge Trey Spikes 

office and the warrants were for Display Expired Plates, and Speeding - 10% above 

the posted speed.  Upon seeing the warrants, I had MCSO dispatcher confirm the 

warrants were still valid.  While waiting for the warrants to be confirmed, I went 

back to Justin's vehicle and advised him that he had warrants for his arrest.  While 

speaking with Justin I could smell the odor of unburnt marijuana emitting from 

inside the vehicle.  I asked Justin if he had any marijuana in the vehicle and he 

looked towards the backseat and said no.  I asked Justin to exit the vehicle and 

placed handcuffs on him and placed him into the rear seat of my patrol vehicle.  

After putting Justin in backseat, I returned to his vehicle and discovered a black 

backpack that was sitting in the rear seat that contained a clear glass container 

that had a usable amount of a green leafy substance, a digital scale which is 

commonly used to sell and buy narcotics.  Through my training and experience I 

identified the green leafy substance as marijuana.  The leafy substance was test 

using a NIK test kit and had a positive test result for marijuana.  Upon testing the 

marijuana, MCSO dispatcher had confirmed the warrants, and I advised her that 

Justin was in custody.   

I had MCSO dispatcher air for a fifteen minute wrecker call and the vehicle was 

then towed by Keith's Towing, chip# 169 and was towed to 27714 Robinson Road 

(Conroe, TX) in fair condition and the owner is aware.  Justin was then 

transported to MCSO South County Jail without any further incident. 

After placing Justin into MCSO custody, I returned to Oak Ridge North PD and 

placed the marijuana, scale, two clear glass jars, and the black back pack into 



evidence.  The marijuana was weighed and had a total weight of 16.4 grams using 

an Ohaus triple beam balance.  

 

On 06/09/2017 at approximately 0001 hours, I, Officer H. Richard was patrolling 

at the 27800 block of IH 45 North Feeder, when I observed a white motorcycle 

traveling with unreadable paper plates.  I turned on my red and blue emergency 

lights to make a traffic stop at 19671 IH 45 North Feeder, NTB parking lot.  I got 

out of my patrol vehicle and approached on the left side of the motorcycle.  I 

asked the driver for his license and insurance.  Driver stated that he does not have 

his license with him nor have insurance.  I wrote down his name and date of birth.  

Driver was later identified as Steven Michael Miller, dob x, white male, identified 

by his name and date of birth.  I went back to my patrol vehicle and checked him 

through Montgomery County Sheriff's dispatch.  His name came back with 

surcharges.  His surcharges are as follows: 

ENFORC ACTN: SUSPENDED - SURCHARGE DUE DWLI 

STATUS: ACTIVE BEGIN DT: 07282016 END DT: 12319999 LIFT DT:          STATE: TX 

ENFORC ACTN: MANDATORY SUSPENSION - DRIVING WHILE LICENSE INVALID 

STATUS: ACTIVE BEGIN DT: 03212016 END DT: 03202018 LIFT DT:          STATE: TX 

ENFORC ACTN: SR SUSPENSION - MANDATORY CONVICTION 

STATUS: ACTIVE BEGIN DT: 03212016 END DT: 12319999 LIFT DT:          STATE: TX 

ENFORC ACTN: SUSPENDED - SURCHARGE DUE NO DRIVER LICENSE 

STATUS: LIFTED BEGIN DT: 10142013 END DT: 12319999 LIFT DT: 11182013 

STATE: TX 

ENFORC ACTN: SUSPENDED - DEFAULT INSTALLMENT AGREEMENT NO DRIVER 

LICENSE 

STATUS: LIFTED BEGIN DT: 09262013 END DT: 12319999 LIFT DT: 11182013 

STATE: TX 

ENFORC ACTN: SUSPENDED - SURCHARGE DUE NO DRIVER LICENSE 



STATUS: LIFTED BEGIN DT: 07272012 END DT: 12319999 LIFT DT: 08192013 

STATE: TX 

ENFORC ACTN: JUVENILE SUSPENSION - CONTEMPT 

STATUS: ACTIVE BEGIN DT: 12212011 END DT: 12319999 LIFT DT:          STATE: TX 

ENFORC ACTN: CANCELLED INCOMPLETE DRIVER EDUCATION 

STATUS: LIFTED BEGIN DT: 01212011 END DT: 12319999 LIFT DT: 03292013 

STATE: TX 

Officer Duenas (2841) with Shenandoah Police Department checked by my traffic 

stop.  Officer Duenas asked Miller if he had anything illegal on him that he needs 

to know about.  Miller stated that he had marijuana in his left pocket.  Officer 

Duenas retrieved the green leaf like substance and we placed Miller in custody at 

0018 hours.  I called the on-duty ADA and he accepted chargers for Miller for 

Possession of Marijuana <20z and Driving While License Invalid with no insurance. 

(Class B)  I tested the green leaf like substance with a (E) Nik Kit for marijuana.  

NIK KIT (E) tested positive for marijuana. Miller's vehicle was towed by Rickey's 

Wrecker by chip number 187 and stored at 9131 HWY 242 in poor condition.  I 

transported Miller to Montgomery County Sheriff's Office (South County) for 

booking.  I weighed the marijuana with an Ohaus Dial-O-gram scale, scale showed 

a weigh of 6.8 grams.  The marijuana was labeled and placed in Oak Ridge North 

P.D. evidence locker room.     

 

On 06/09/2017 at approximately 0420 hours, I, Officer H. Richard was patrolling 

on Maplewood, when I observed a black Toyota pick-up truck traveling south.  I 

made a U-turn, got behind the vehicle and checked Texas plate BLR0258 through 

my Mobile Data Computer (MDC). The truck's plates came back with unconfirmed 

insurance for more than 45 days and expired registration.  I also observed that his 

license plate light was not working.  I turned on my red and blue emergency lights 

and made a traffic stop at 26515 Maplewood.  I got out of my patrol vehicle and 

approached on the driver's side.  I made contact with the driver and asked him for 

his insurance and driver's license. The driver stated that he does not have a valid 

driver's license and it may be suspended. The driver was later identified as Shawn 

Henry Lyons, dob x, white male, identified by his name and date of birth.  I went 

back to my patrol vehicle and checked him through Montgomery County Sheriff's 



dispatch. He came back with three warrants through Montgomery County 

Sheriff's Office.  MCSO confirmed warrant number 257886AA for failure to appear 

with a fine amount of $300.00, warrant number 257886 for speeding 15 miles or 

over with a fine amount of $200.00 and warrant number 257886A for violate 

promise to appear with a fine amount of $150.00.  I placed Lyons in custody at 

0428 hours. I asked for the passenger's driver's license, so that I can release the 

vehicle to a licensed driver.  The passenger was identified as Krystal Marie Hurt, 

date of birth x, white female, identified by her TXDL number x.  I checked her 

through my MDC and she was clear.  I searched the vehicle and found three more 

pipes in the passenger's side door. I confiscated the pipes, and was unable to test 

the burnt substance.   Hurt asked if she can get her brothers boots from her 

boyfriend.  I walked Hurts to the back of my patrol vehicle so she can retrieve the 

boots.  Lyons took off the boots and I looked through the boots for any weapons 

or drugs.  I found a clear glass pipe with white residue in it.  I tested the residue 

with a (U) NIK TEST KIT and tested positive for Methamphetamine.  I called the 

on-duty ADA and he accepted chargers of PCS<1 for Lyons. 

Vehicle was released to Hurts. 

Lyons was transported to Montgomery County Sheriff's Office, South County for 

booking.  

All evidence was placed in the Oak Ridge North P.D. evidence locker room.    

 
On 06/10/17 at 0331 hrs. I Off. J. Walden #2734, was dispatched to 410 Oak Ridge 
Grove Dr. in reference to criminal mischief. I arrived and met with the 
reportee/victim, who was identified as Joe Haisler w/m DOB: x. Haisler stated that 
at some time around 0325 hrs. Unknown subject(s) had come onto his property 
and vandalized his vehicle and his residence by throwing eggs at them. Haisler 
stated he first heard loud banging at his front door which had awakened himself 
and his son. Haisler then came to the front of the house and observed that several 
eggs had been thrown at both the residence and his vehicle in the driveway. I 
observed that the garage door, the roof of the residence, and a green in color 
Honda Accord bearing TX LP DD3K114 had all been hit with the eggs. Haisler 
stated he believed the damage to have been caused by teenagers from the 
neighborhood as he had caught several on his property on a previous occasion in 
April of this year. Estimated damage is $100-$200.  
 



On 06/10/2017 at approximately 0952 hours, I, Officer Teske, was dispatched to a 
motor vehicle crash on IH 45 South at Woodlands Pkwy.  The crash occurred at 
approximately 0947 hours.  Dispatch notes showed a non-contact vehicle, a black 
Porsche 4-door passenger car displaying TXLP# JNG2515, continued north and 
then exited back to the Feeder Road.   I arrived on scene and observed the crash 
occurred on IH 45 South under Woodlands Pkwy Overpass.  The area of IH 45 is a 
five lane highway with an HOV lane attached to the inside lane.  I observed a tan 
Hummer H2, displaying TXLP# HPB9145, facing south across the inside shoulder 
and the HOV lane.  I made contact with the driver, identified by TDL# x as Melissa 
Elizondo w/f dob x.  Melissa advised that she was traveling south in the #4 lane 
at/near the posted speed of 65 mph.  A vehicle that had entered the freeway 
from the Feeder Road (just north of Woodlands Pkwy) cut in front of her, crossing 
over a solid white line, and forcing her to hit the brakes to avoid an accident.  She 
then lost control of her vehicle and spun out, striking the concrete barrier on the 
inside shoulder with her vehicle's back right quarter.  Melissa was visibly shaken 
and upset as a result of the accident.  MCHD Medic 22 was on scene and advised 
that Melissa was not going to be transported, and I did not observe any obvious 
injuries.  As there were no other vehicles on scene, I asked her for a description of 
the non-contact vehicle.  She stated that it happened so fast that all she knew was 
that it was a black car.  She was unable to provide a description of the driver.  I 
observed there was minor damage to the back right quarter/bumper and asked 
Melissa to drive the vehicle from the roadway so I could complete gathering 
information needed for the report.  Melissa drove to the JoAnn Fabrics parking lot 
where I met with her and gathered the information needed for the accident 
report.  I then returned to service.  Based on the damage to the Hummer, without 
a written estimate, I believe the damage was approximately $1000.00 at this 
time.  I observed the dispatch call notes showed the original reportee to dispatch 
called from xx, and there was no name associated with the number.  I called this 
phone number and was sent to voice mail for a "Kelly".  I left a message asking 
the reportee to call me back.  I observed the dispatch call notes also showed a 
witness of Christine at xx.  I contacted Christine and her husband Aaron Capps.  
They advised they were traveling southbound on the Feeder Road and entered 
the Freeway from Lake Woodlands (just north of Woodlands Pkwy).  They advised 
there was a line of cars and the person behind them, in the black Porsche, 
apparently didn't want to stay in the lane with the line of cars.  They advised the 
Porsche shot past them and went over three lanes cutting in front of the 
Hummer, causing the Hummer to spin out.  They were unsure if the Hummer hit 



the wall.  They advised the driver of the Porsche then sped up and shot back over 
and got off of the freeway.  I asked if they believed it was reasonable for the 
Hummer to hit the brakes and spin out, and if they believed the Porsche caused 
the Hummer to have an accident.  Aaron advised that when the Porsche swerved 
around them, it was close to the Hummer and the Hummer was forced to slam on 
the brakes.  Aaron also believed the driver of the Porsche, an older white male 
with gray hair, knew that he did it because he saw the male looking back in the 
mirror.  When Aaron sped up to get the license plate, the Porsche sped up  and 
then cut back to the right and exited to the Feeder Road.  I asked if they would be 
willing to provide a written statement and they advised that they would, but they 
were currently headed to Galveston. 
 
The registered owner of the Porsche is Petroleum Wholesale LP/John W. Cook, 
8550 Technology Forest Place, The Woodlands, Texas 77381.  I contacted the 
Petroleum Wholesale switchboard at xx and was referred to their legal 
department.  I was informed the legal department does not work on the 
weekends but was sent to the legal department's voice mail.  I left a message for 
their legal department to call me back.     
 


